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BOARD OF EDUCATION OF THE CITY OF LOS ANGELES 
Governing Board of the Los Angeles Unified School District 

 
September 16, 2025 

REPORT OF CORRESPONDENCE 
 
The following correspondence addressed to the Board of Education is submitted with the recommended 
Disposition, “Refer to Superintendent for referral to Office of the General Counsel to take all steps necessary to 
protect the interests of the Board of Education, including assignment to outside counsel; Controller to draw 
warrants in such amounts as may be necessary for the payment of costs and fees upon invoices as approved by 
the Office of the General Counsel”: 
 

 FROM LEGAL ACTION 

1.  Beloryan & Manukyan LLP Summons & Complaint for Damages: 1) Negligence; 2) 
Premises Liability; 3) Negligent Hiring, Training, 
Supervision; 4) Professional Negligence; 5) Negligence 
Per se; 6) Breach of Contract (Third-Party Beneficiary); 
7) Disability Discrimination Pursuant to Unruh Civil 
Rights Act; 8) Disability Discrimination Pursuant to 
Civil Code §54.3; 9) Disability Discrimination Pursuant 
to California Education Code §220; 10) Breach of 
Mandatory Duty; Case No. 25CHCV01646; Superior 
Court of the State of California, County of Los Angeles 
– Central District; A. Tigranyan, a minor, by and 
through his GAL Anush Karapetyan, Plaintiff, v. Los 
Angeles Unified School District, et al., inclusive, 
Defendants. 
 

2.  Benji Personal Injury-Accident Attorneys, 
A.P.C. 

Summons & Complaint for Personal Injury, General 
Negligence, Future Loss of Earnings; Case No. 
25STCV6109; Superior Court of the State of California, 
County of Los Angeles; Susana Atayde, Guardian Ad 
Litem, Jacob Atayde, a minor, Plaintiff, v. Los Angeles 
Unified School District, a Public Entity, and Does 1-50, 
Defendants. 
 

3.  Benson Legal, APC Summons & Complaint for Property Damages; Case 
No. 25STLC05712; Superior Court of the State of 
California, County of Los Angeles; Nationwide 
Insurance Company of America, Plaintiff, v. Los 
Angeles Unified School District, Does 1 to 10, 
inclusive, Defendants. 
 

4.  Brad Gage Law Summons & Complaint for Damages: 1) Negligence; 2) 
Harassment in Educational Institution (Ed. Code Section 
220); 3) Violation of Title VI (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d 
– Racially Hostile Educational Environment); 4) 
Violation of Title VI (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d – 
Intentional Discrimination by Denial of Benefits of a 
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Public Education); 5) Assault; 6) Battery; 7) Bane Act 
(California Civil Code Section 52.1); 8) Ralph Act 
(California Civil Code Section 51.7); 9) Intentional 
Infliction of Emotional Distress; Case No. 
25STCV22581; Superior Court of the State of 
California, for the County of Los Angeles; S.T., a 
minor, by and through his GAL, Ardrina Torres, 
Plaintiff, v. Los Angeles Unified School District, and 
Does 1 to 50, inclusive, Defendants. 
 

5.  Downtown L.A. Law Group Summons & Complaint for Damages: 1) Childhood 
Sexual Assault; 2) Negligent Hiring, Supervision and 
Retention of Unfit Employee; 3) Breach of Mandatory 
Duty; 4) Negligence; Case No. 25CMCV00598; 
Superior Court of the State of California, County of Los 
Angeles; Jane Doe T.T., an individual, Plaintiff, v. Los 
Angeles Unified School District, et al, inclusive, 
Defendants. 
 

6.  Downtown LA Law Group Summons & Complaint: 1) Premises Liability; 2) 
Negligent Failure to Supervise (Cal. Govt. Code § 
815.2; Case No. 25NWCV02794; Superior Court of the 
State of California, County of Los Angeles; Johnny 
Ixcolin, a minor, by and through his Guardian ad Litem 
Odilia Ixcolin, Plaintiff, v. Los Angeles Unified School 
District, et al., Defendants. 
 

7.  Jacoby & Meyers Attorney LLP Summons & Complaint: 1) Premises Liability; 2) 
General Negligence; Case No. 25VECV04480; Superior 
Court of the State of California, for the County of Los 
Angeles; Ana M. Herrera, Plaintiff, v. Los Angeles 
Unified School District, et al, Defendants.  
 

8.  Javanmardi Law, Holmquist Summons & Complaint for Property Damages: 1) 
FEHA Employment Discrimination (Gov. Code Section 
12940(a)); 2) FEHA Failure to Accommodate (Gov. 
Code Section 12940(m)); 3) FEHA Failure to Engage in 
Timely & Good-Faith Interactive Process (Gov. Code 
Section 12940(n)); 4) FEHA Harassment (Gov. Code 
Section 12940(j)); 5) FEHA Retaliation (Gov. Code 
Section 12940(h)(m)); 6) FEHA Failure to 
Prevent/Remedy Discrimination (Gov. Code Section 
12940(k)); and 7) Whistleblower Retaliation (Lab. Code 
Sections 1102.5, 6310)); Case No. 25STCV21799; 
Superior Court of the State of California, County of Los 
Angeles – Central District; Leilani Bright, Plaintiff, v. 
Los Angeles Unified School District, Does 1 to 10, 
inclusive, Defendants. 
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9.  Law Offices of Gary Berkovich, APC Summons & Complaint: 1) General Negligence; 
Statement of Damages; Case No. 25VECV04688; 
Superior Court of the State of California, County of Los 
Angeles; Bella A. Meneses, a minor, by and through her 
GAL, Jenifer Jahoska Meneses Salgado, Plaintiff, v. Los 
Angeles Unified School District, et al, inclusive, 
Defendants. 
 

10.  Office of the City Attorney Summons & Cross-Complaint: 1) Indemnification; 2) 
Apportionment of Fault; 3) Declaratory Relief; Case No. 
24CHCV03683; Superior Court of the State of 
California, for the County of Los Angeles; City of Los 
Angeles, a Municipal Corporation, Plaintiff, v. Los 
Angeles Unified School District, et al, inclusive, 
Defendants. 
 

11.  Payton Employment Law, PC Summons & Plaintiff’s Complaint for: 1) Disability-
Based Discrimination in Violation of California 
Government Code § 12940 (a); 2) Failure to Prevent 
Discrimination in Violation of California Government 
Code § 12940 (k); 3) Failure to Engage in the 
Interactive Process in Violation of California 
Government Code § 12940 (n); 4) Failure to Provide a 
Reasonable Accommodation in Violation of California 
Government Code § 12940 (m); 5) Retaliation for 
Reasonable Accommodation Request in Violation of 
California Government Code § 12940 (m)(2); Case No. 
25CHCV03017; Superior Court of the State of 
California, County of Los Angeles; Sophie Sabbah, an 
individual; Plaintiff, v. Los Angeles Unified School 
District, et al, inclusive, Defendants. 
 

12.  Qureshi Law PC Summons & Complaint: 1) Negligence; 2) Negligent 
Hiring, Training, Supervision, and Retention; 3) 
Negligent Supervision; Case No. 25SMCV03901; 
Superior Court of the State of California, County of Los 
Angeles; P.H., a minor, by and through her GAL, Paul 
Holt, Plaintiff, v. Los Angeles Unified School District, 
and Does 1 through 10, inclusive, Defendant. 
 

13.  Shakeer Rahman, Esq. 
Ricci Sergienko, Esq. 

Verified Petition for Writ of Mandate; Case No. 
25STCP03373; Superior Court of the State of 
California, County of Los Angeles; T.W., a minor by his 
guardian Jason Reedy, and Jason Reedy, Plaintiffs, v. 
Los Angeles Unified School District, Defendant. 
 

14.  Shegerian & Associates, Inc. Summons & Plaintiff Julie Annette Smith’s Complaint 
for Damages for: 1) Discrimination in Violation of 
FEHA; 2) Hostile Work Environment Harassment in 
Violation of FEHA; 3) Retaliation in Violation of 
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FEHA; 4) Failure to Provide Reasonable 
Accommodation in Violation of FEHA; 5) Failure to 
Engage in the Interactive Process in Violation of FEHA; 
6) Failure to Prevent Discrimination, Harassment, and 
Retaliation in Violation of FEHA; 7) Interference with 
CFRA Leave; 8) Retaliation for Taking CFRA Leave; 
Case No. 25STCV21943; Superior Court of the State of 
California, for the County of Los Angeles; Julie Annette 
Smith, Plaintiff, v. Los Angeles Unified School District, 
and Does 1 to 100, inclusive, Defendants. 
 

15.  Slater, Slater, Schulman, LLP Summons & Complaint for Personal Injuries and 
Damages from Childhood Sexual Abuse; Case No. 
25STCV21293; Superior Court of the State of 
California, for the County of Los Angeles; Jane Doe 
A.P., Plaintiff, v. Los Angeles Unified School District, 
and Does 1 to 40, inclusive, Defendants. 
 

16.  Slater, Slater, Schulman, LLP Summons & Complaint for Personal Injuries and 
Damages from Childhood Sexual Abuse; Case No. 
25STCV17205; Superior Court of the State of 
California, for the County of Los Angeles; Jane Doe 
M.K., Plaintiff, v. Los Angeles Unified School District, 
and Does 1 to 60, inclusive, Defendants. 
 

17.  The Dominguez Firm LLP Summons & Complaint: 1) General Negligence; 2) 
Premises Liability; Case No. 25STCV15049; Superior 
Court of the State of California, County of Los Angeles; 
Adamaris Ortiz, a minor, by and through her GAL, 
Mario Ortiz, Plaintiff, v. Los Angeles Unified School 
District, et al., inclusive, Defendants. 
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The recommended disposition of the following item is “Refer to Superintendent for referral to the Office of the 
Risk Management and Insurance Services”:        

 
No. 

 
Received From 

 
    Type of Damage 

 
Claimant 

 
Date of Damage 

18.  David Miller 
Martin & Martin LLP 

Damages A’nyis Levaughn Approx. Spring 
2025 & ongoing 

19.  Julien Cleret Damages Ariana Villegas Cleret 05-21-25 

20.  Marc Katzman 
Marc Katzman | Law 

Damages Christopher Carley 05-14-25 

21.  Karen Woodward 
Office of the City Attorney 

Damages City of Los Angeles 01-13-24 

22.  Sharona Eslamboly Hakim 
Law Offices of Eslamboly 
Hakim 

Damages Crystal Darlene Walters 02-12-25 
 

23.  Downtown LA Law Group Damages Daniel Stepanenko 02-24-25 

24.  Law Offices of Etan Z. 
Lorant 

Damages Herbert Mann-Escobar 
By his mother Yerania 
Escobar 

05-27-25 

25.  Narbeh Shirvanian 
The Shirvanian Law Firm 

Damages Ivan Oliveros, a minor & 
Adriana Oliveros 

07-17-25 

26.  Angie Alvarez 
Downtown LA Law Group 

Damages Katherine Ibarra Izabella 02-19-25 

27.  Downtown LA Law Group Damages Leeandrae Bursey 02-26-25 

28.  Boris Sargsyan 
S&C Legal Group 

Damages Maribel Manzo 
 

03-03-25 

29.  Angie Alvarez 
Downtown LA Law Group 

Damages Nikko Royce 03-05-25 
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30.  Angie Alvarez 
Downtown LA Law Group 

Damages Roxana Perez 03-05-25 

31.  Joseph Farzam 
Farzam Law Firm 

Damages Sheila Flores-Rios 02-20-25 
 

32.  Kayhan Fatemi 
Best Contracting Services, 
Inc. 

Damages Best Contracting 
Services, Inc. 

Multiple dates 
provided 

33.  Downtown LA Law Group Damages Steven Helmy 02-20-25 

34.  Terri Milner Damages Taya Jones 02-20-25,  
02-24-25 

35.  Jennifer Ngo 
Interinsurance Exchange 
of the Automobile Club 

Vehicle Damages AAA - Interins Exchg of 
Automobile Club 

06-11-25 

36.  Ana Yeatts 
Aspire General Insurance 
Company 

Vehicle Damages Aspire General Insurance 07-16-25 

37.  Aurelio Gonzalez Vehicle Damages Aurelio Gonzalez 05-30-25 
 

38.  Elva Gomez Vehicle Damages Elva Gomez 05-14-25 

39.  Erick Sanchez Vehicle Damages Erick Sanchez 06-09-25 

40.  Guadalupe Macareno Vehicle Damages Guadalupe Macareno 08-26-25 

41.  Gavin Perdomo 
Automobile Club of 
Southern California 

Vehicle Damages Javier Camberos 07-16-25 

42.  Jerèe Sparks Vehicle Damages Jerèe Sparks 08-18-25 
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43.  Jessica Perez Vehicle Damages Jessica Perez 08-14-25 

44.  Karen Diaz Vehicle Damages Karen Diaz 08-11-25 

45.  Mendez & Sanchez Vehicle Damages Keith Lamar Hogan 07-16-25 

46.  Larisa Gasparyan Vehicle Damages Larisa Gasparyan None provided 

47.  Leticia Escobar Arias Vehicle Damages Leticia Escobar Arias 08-22-25 

48.  Michael Akhdienor 
Akhidenor Law, PC 

Vehicle Damages Milton Jr. Tate 04-03-25 

49.  Ronald Guzman Vehicle Damages Ronald Guzman 03-26-25 

50.  Ruth Kim Vehicle Damages Ruth Kim 03-17-25 

51.  Stephanie Easterbrook 
State Farm Mutual 
Automobile Insurance 
Company 
 

Vehicle Damages State Farm Mutual 
Automobile Ins Co a/s/o 
Revaz Matsiashvili 

04-30-25 

52.  Gary Minevich 
Minevich Law APC 

Vehicle Damages Vladyslav Sinkovskyi 05-21-25 

53.  Stacy Gay 
Recovery Services 
International, Inc. 

Vehicle Damages Zum Services, Inc 03-06-25 
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